Disposition of questions and comments received in response to the

Facilities Operations and Maintenance Services (FOMS) Draft Request for Proposals.


	Questions or Comments
	Disposition or Response

	1)Reference Section L, Subfactor A – Technical Approach, 10th paragraph page 87-88 states “The Offeror shall include methods to maintain and improve the existing RCM program at GSFC. We are not sure how contractors can do this without knowledge of the extent of the current program. This requirement should be clarified, deleted or provide the status of the current program.
	Technology utilized in the RCM Program at GSFC is discussed in Attachment A, Section 2.10.3, providing knowledge of the program and Appendix 8 details the extent of the RCM program.
Appendix 8 has been updated to include GOMAR descriptions and Attachment C – Special Equipment has been updated to ensure its accuracy.

	2) Reference Section L, Subfactor A – Technical Approach, 13th paragraph page 88. The first part of this paragraph requires the discussion of proposed innovations. The second part of the referenced paragraph asks offerors to discuss personnel categories, skill mix, etc. Does the second part of the paragraph have anything to do with the first part, i.e. innovations, if not we suggest making the last part of the paragraph a separate paragraph.
	The discussion on labor skill and mix is related to the proposed innovative methods, techniques, or technologies.

	3) Reference Section L Subfactor B – Management Approach, page 89-reference the last sentence. Is the staffing plan a part of the phase in plan? If so please indicate this.
	The staffing plan is not a part of the phase-in plan.

	4) Reference Attachment A, Part 2 – Baseline Contract Requirements, Paragraph 2.1:1 Program Implementation. The referenced paragraph states in part “The contractor schedule shall be available electronically and accessible at any time. Does Maximo provide the schedule capability required? Please clarify.
	Maximo has the capability for this requirement.

	5) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 1.11.3.1 states “The contractor shall be responsible for replacing equipment.” If so, the Government should provide a current condition assessment for each item of equipment listed.
	The Government performed a condition assessment in December 2009, which showed all equipment to be in “fair to good” condition.  

	6) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 1.11.7 states “The contractor shall not utilize any other radio communication devices in managing the work under the contract.” Does that restrict the use of cell phones and portable computers with cell phone capabilities? Please clarify.

7) Reference RFP Paragraph I.148.52.222-42 Statement of Equivalent Rates for Federal Hires May 1989, Page 53 and 54. It appears that employee class shown is not adequate to support the RFP SOW; examples are:

· Quality Control

· Safety

· Environmental

· Security

· PT&I Technician (Vibration Analysis, MCE, Ultrasonic/Ultrasound Tasking and Implementation)

· Property Management

· Accounting/Finance/Business Mgmt.

· Computer Specialist

· Personnel (Human Resources)

· Crane Operator

· Elevator Mechanic

· Chemical Treatment Mechanic/Specialist

· HVAC/R Mechanic

· Plant Operators and possible others

Please Clarify by added necessary employee classes that the Government would employ, if you consider combining some of the functions noted above with those specified in the reference please note same.
	The use of cell phones and portable computers with cell phone capabilities is not restricted; however, only the Government provided radio communication devices shall be used in managing the work under the contract.  Attachment A, Paragraph 1.11.7 has been revised for clarification.
The labor categories listed in the referenced clause are only what the Government would expect to use for the requirement relative to classes of service employees.  However, it is at each offeror’s discretion as to the labor categories utilized for this requirement and ensure any proposed labor category that is considered a service employee meet any associated wage determination and are paid accordingly.  Some of the labor categories such as Safety or Environmental may not be considered Service employees.
NOTE:  Clause I.148 has been revised to include the equivalent rates for federal hires for the following labor categories:  PT&I Technician, Elevator Mechanic and HVAC/R Mechanic.

	8) Reference RFP Attachments P, Q, R, S, T. The RFP does not specify how those referenced bid schedules will be evaluated. If they are not going to be evaluated, then we question why the contractors are required to provide reference unit prices. Please Clarify. Also, the referenced attachments unit price description, in most cases, is not sufficient to provide a reasonable unit price due to the fact that price will greatly fluctuate based on quantity of work performed. Example: if the job is to paint 200 SF vs. 400 SF, the 200 SF job requires the same amount of set up time as the 400 SF job. If the Government decides that the bid schedule will be evaluated and cannot provide quantitative data, we would suggest doing like most other agencies, that when contractors perform this type of work their estimates would be based on R.S. Means. The contractor can propose a coefficient factor as a competitive consideration for the Government to base cost award performance on.
	Exhibit 12 has been incorporated into the solicitation in order to provide quantitative data for evaluation of Firm Fixed Price Task Order pricing.  L.22.2 Cost Proposal Format has been revised to incorporate the evaluation of Exhibit 12 – Pricing Charts for Firm Fixed Price Task Orders.  M.4 Cost Evaluation Factor has been revised to incorporate evaluation language for Exhibit 12 – Pricing Charts for Firm Fixed Price Task Orders.    

	9) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 2.5 Computing Environment. The referenced CMMS, Maximo, does not provide the capabilities to support many functions that the contractor is required to perform to support the FOMR contract, i.e. actual maintenance cost, actual cost accounting, timekeeping, payroll, subcontracts/vendor management/cost, task orders, cost accounting/billing, human resources and others. Given this as a fact, the contractor would have to perform these functions manually or by electronic means. The question is, can the contractor interface (electronically) with Maximo to extract labor hours and procurement data as an example to feed its business computing capability so as not to duplicate input information?


	Maximo is configured for Contractor interface in order to allow the extraction of data into Microsoft Excel.  

	10) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 2.7.3 Repair/Trouble Calls. The RFP did not provide any limits of contractor responsibility (hours/dollars) for the various classes of trouble calls. Please Clarify.
	The only limitation of contractor responsibility is the dollar amount associated with major repairs referenced in Attachment A, Section 3.20.  Please refer to Appendix 7 for the historical workload history of this requirement.

	11) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 2.7.4 PM/PT&I. The referenced paragraph did not provide a list or reference to a list of equipment that PM/PT&I must consider. Please Clarify.
	Appendix 8 contains all equipment requiring PM/PT&I .

	12) Reference Attachment A, Paragraph 2.7.5. No reference to the quantity of perimeter lighting to be maintained. Please Clarify. The same is true of electronic systems, exterior site lighting, main electrical substations and mobile generators. 

Note: Appendix 8 reference is not found in the draft.

Note: Instead of making reference of lack of equipment list requiring maintenance for each SOW as we have done above, we assume the Government will provide a listing of equipment for each SOW area in sufficient detail that the contractor can evaluate for developing its proposal. 

Note: We would recommend that the Government increase mission suitability response to 125-150 page limit. The reason is that the RFP has requested the contractor to respond to a wide variety of subjects which we feel cannot be addressed adequately enough to prevent misunderstandings with evaluators. The more you restrict a contractor’s response, the more opportunity there is for the evaluator to question why something he/she felt should be addressed more clearly was not. The contractor has to make judgments as to what to emphasize when the pages are limited.
	Attachment A, Paragraph 2.7.5 has been revised to incorporate approximate numbers for street and perimeter lighting.  Mobile generators are contained in Appendix 8 under assets as “000-GEN” for GOMAR numbers. Substation assets can be located in Appendix 8 with a location of “0315” or “0245”.
Appendix 8 is referenced in Attachment A, Section 2.7.1.

The Government will not provide a list of equipment for each SOW area.  All equipment has been identified in the attachments.
The Government will take this into consideration, however, we do not anticipate a change to the page limit.

	13) Who is the incumbent and is that firm eligible to compete in the instant procurement? Are they still 8(a) ?
	The incumbent is Capitol Technology Services, Inc., which is no longer an 8(a) company. 

	14) Please inform if this is new work or a re-compete. We are an 8(a) company  with over 13 years past performance to current performing these duties.
	This is a follow-on to an existing requirement.

	15) We are interested to Bid for this Contract. Could you please advise as to when the side visit or a pre-bid conference  will be held. 
	The site visit date and time will be released in the final RFP.

	16) We could not find in Section L or M where the Government asks (requires) the contractor to discuss his organization structure/plan. Is this an omission? The same is true for key personnel qualifications.


	L.21 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subfactor B, Management Approach, has been revised to incorporate a requirement for the submission of organizational charts.  M.3, Mission Suitability Factor, Subfactor B, Management Approach has also been revised relative to the submission of organizational charts.  There are no key personnel qualification requirements; however, please refer to Provision M.5 Past Performance Evaluation Factor for key personnel consideration during the evaluation of past performance by the Government.

	17) Will the Government consider a 45 day period for RFP response due to the complexity of the work and number of plans required?


	The proposal response time will remain at 30 days.

	18) When will the Government host a site visit?
	The date and time of the site visit will be released in the final RFP.

	19) Will the Government provide historical workload data and staffing levels by labor category to facilitate proposal preparation?


	Historical workload data is provided in Appendix 7.  The Government will not provide workload data broken down by labor category as it is at each offeror’s discretion as to the  proposed utilization of labor categories.

	20) Will the Government provide Goddard and FMD organization charts to assist in proposal development?


	Organizational charts are available at www.nasa.gov/centers/goddard/home/index.html

	21) Pg 3, Section B.3(a) states: “For purposes of payment of cost, exclusive of fee, in accordance with the Limitation of Funds clause, the total amount allotted by the Government to this contract is $TBD. Paragraph B.4(a) states: “The maximum amount of supplies or services that may be ordered during the potential 5-year period of performance of this contract is $30,500,000. The posted NAIS NPDV summary for the current contract lists Total Obligations at $82,642,594 and Total Award Value at $83,775,460.

Question: Will the Government provide the anticipated award value for the contract broken out by CPFF core services and IDIQ amounts by services and construction, so that offerors can accurately plan their approach and cost to perform these services.


	The anticipated total award value is comprised of the total proposed value of core services (Exhibit 1) for the requirement plus the maximum ordering value stated in Clause B.4.  Offerors must utilize the SOW and workload history, along with the contract requirements, to develop an estimated cost of the core services over the basic and option periods.

	22(a) Pg 86, Section L.21, 2. Mission Suitability Proposal Format, states: “The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) contained in Exhibit 1 of this solicitation shall be used to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal”. Exhibit 1 is a pricing spreadsheet to be used for each WBS element.

Question: Will the Government provide the WBS? 
	L.21.2 Mission Suitability Proposal Format has been revised to remove language regarding the Work Breakdown Structure.

	23) Pg 108, Section M.3.3 Weights and Scoring, states: “The Mission Suitability evaluation will include the results of any cost realism analysis.  The realism of proposed costs may significantly affect the offeror’s Mission Suitability score.”

Questions: Will the Government provide the cost realism adjustment table stating the cost differential ranges and corresponding point adjustments?


	The cost realism adjustment table is no longer utilized per the NASA FAR Supplement. 

	24) Pg 109, M.5 Past Performance Evaluation Factor, first paragraph states: “Evidence of a binding teaming agreement or other contractual agreement which creates legal responsibilities on the part of the significant subcontractors may be given more weight in the evaluation of significant subcontractors, in comparison to proposals that lack such agreements and/or evidence.”

Question: Does the Government want offerors to include a signed copy of the teaming agreement(s) with the proposal? If so, should the teaming agreement(s) be placed in the past performance volume? Will the teaming agreement(s) be excluded from the page count?
	It is at each offeror’s discretion whether to submit a signed copy of the teaming agreement(s) with the proposal.  Provision L.13(b)(1) Proposal Content and Page Limitations has been revised for submission of evidence of binding teaming agreement or other contractual agreement.
The teaming agreement should be submitted in the Past Performance Volume. 
The teaming agreement is excluded from the page count.

	25) Pg 110, M.5 Past Performance Evaluation Factor, fifth paragraph, states: “The overall confidence rating assigned to an offeror’s Past Performance (see below) will reflect a subjective evaluation of the information contained in the oral presentation, if applicable; written narrative; past performance evaluation input provided through customer questionnaires; and other references, if any, that the Government may contact for additional past performance information.”

Question: Will the offerors be required to make oral presentations as part of the proposal response and when will they occur?
	Oral presentations will not be utilized for this requirement.  M.5, Past Performance Evaluation Factor has been revised to delete “oral presentation” from the solicitation.

	26) Attachment A FOMS SOW. The SOW refers to a number of appendices, none of which are included.

a. Appendix 1 – List of Appendices

b. Appendix 2 – Acronym List

c. Appendix 3 – Building Descriptions

d. Appendix 4 – GFF

e. Appendix 5 –Installation Accountable Government Materials (IAGM)

f. Appendix 6 –GSFC Standard Reference Document

g. Appendix 7 –Workload History (2005 – 2009)

h. Appendix 8 –Equipment List and Associated PM plans

i. Appendix 9 –LEV Equipment listing

j. Appendix 10 –FMD Engineering Study Protocol

k. Appendix 11 –Outage Historical Workload

l. Appendix 14 - Memorandum of Understanding between Code 200 and GEWA

Question: Will the Government provide this information during the draft phase to allow for comments?
	Refer to Provision L.7 for the applicable web site address for access to these appendices.  This website was accessible via the DRFP.


	27) Pg 7, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 1.3. Management, states: “The Government will furnish or make available to the Contractor adequate facilities to perform all necessary functions within the scope of the contract. All such facilities will be provided in an “as-is” condition.

Question:  Does “as-is” require the contractor to repair/replace as items that are in bad condition and at the contractor’s expense?
	All facilities are considered in “fair to good” condition.  Upgrades outside of GSFC standards will be at the Contractor’s expense and are subject to Government approval.  Many of these facilities will be visited during the scheduled site visit tour.

	28) Pg 7, Attachment A FOMS SOW, states: “The Goddard Policy Directives (GPDs) and Goddard Procedural Requirements (GPRs) referred to in this SOW can be accessed at the following website. http://gdms.gsfc.nasa.gov/home.jsp”

Question: I have not been able to access this site. Is this the correct address?
	 The referenced website is only available internally at GSFC; however the GPDs and GPRs can be found utilizing a web search engine.

	29) Pg 14, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 1.11.7. Installation Accountable Government Radios and Radio System, states: “The Contractor shall not utilize any other radio communication devices in managing the work under this contract.” and later states “Contractor provided radio equipment must be compatible with the GSFC central multi-channel UHF radio system.”

Question: Does the contractor provide radio equipment or not? Are PDAs allowable for use with Maximo?
	Attachment A, Paragraph 1.11.7 has been revised to delete “Contractor provided radio equipment must be compatible with the GSFC central multi-channel UHF radio system”.  Therefore, the Contractor will only be using Government provided radios.  PDAs are allowable for use with Maximo; however, the number of frequencies in the area is limited.


	30) Pg 19, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 2.1.1. Program Implementation, states: “The Contractor shall provide weekly status of all Task Orders.” and later states “The Government may require that a meeting be convened to discuss on-going projects on a bi-weekly basis.” 

Question: Would the bi-weekly meeting replace the weekly meeting?
	There is no “requirement” for a weekly meeting.  Only that “Contractor shall provide weekly status of all Task Orders”.  Attachment A, Paragraph 2.1.1 Program Implementation has been revised to provide clarification on this requirement.

	31) Pg 27, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 2.5.2. Government Provided Desktop Computers and Software, refers to ODIN seats (computers) and software provided by the Government to include Maximo, CAD, GIS, and Archibus. The paragraph referring to Maximo states the number of licenses we receive, but the rest do not.

Question: How many licenses of each are provided? Will they be installed on the ODIN computers and/or other GFE computers? If other, please provide the number and specifications. 
	Attachment A, Statement of Work, Paragraph 2.5.2, Government provided Desktop Computers and Software has been revised to include the number of Government provided licenses for Maximo, CAD, GIS and Archibus.  The referenced software will only be installed and operated on ODIN computers.

	32) Pg 33, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 2.7. Operations and Maintenance, states: “The Government will continue to retain the responsibility for inspection and (re)certification of all cranes, lifting devices (excluding elevators), and boilers.” Paragraph 2.1.3 states “The Contractor shall develop and implement a plan for the periodic certification and calibration of all applicable equipment used in support of hazardous systems or operations.”

Question: Does the Government (re)certify cranes and overhead lifts used for hazardous systems?
	The Government certifies and recertifies cranes and overhead lifts used for hazardous systems.

	33) Pg 38, Attachment A FOMS SOW, Paragraph 2.7.3.e. Repairs and Trouble Calls. States, “If the Contractor cannot be notified for emergency TCs, the Contractor shall proceed with the work and notify the COTR as soon as possible.”

Questions: Should the first reference to the “Contractor” in this statement actual refer to the “COTR”? Is it correct to say that if the contractor cannot be notified, the contractor shall proceed?
	Attachment A, paragraph 2.7.3.e has been revised to read, “If the Building Manager and FOM cannot be notified for emergency TCs, the Contractor shall proceed with the work and notify the COTR as soon as possible.”

	34) Reference RFP L.6 Site Visit (page 72) – will a site visit be schedules?  If so, does the Government know when the Site Visit will be conducted?


	The site visit date and time will be released in the final RFP.

	35) No Specific RFP reference – Bidder’s Conference – will a Bidder’s Conference be conducted?  If so, does the Government know when the Conference will be conducted?
	A bidder’s conference will not be held.  A site visit will be held.  The site visit date and time will be released in the final RFP.

	36) Reference RFP L.13(a)(5) on page 77 which requires that “The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW element versus offeror's proposal page numbers)” Should the Compliance Matrices be included in a single volume or in each respective volume.
	In accordance with Provision L.13(b)(1), the SOW Compliance Matrix should be included in Volume II – Mission Suitability Volume.

	37) Reference RFP L.20 (a) – This section states that the offeror should complete “Blocks 12 through 18 of the SF 33 and the indicated Offeror required fill-ins in Sections B-K must be completed.”  For section C (Scope of Work), should offerors complete and include the Referenced Attachments (e.g., F-1, F-2, etc.)?
	The attachments referenced in Section C are not required offeror fill-ins.

	38) Reference RFP L.21(2) page 86 – this cited section contains the following statement” The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) contained in Exhibit 1 of this solicitation shall be used to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal.”  Since the Mission Suitability is principally technical in nature and the WBS is cost-related, is this statement incorrect?  It would seem that the WBS would be used in the Cost/Price volume.
	L.21.2 Mission Suitability Proposal Format has been revised to remove language regarding the Work Breakdown Structure.

	39) Reference RFP L.21(3) Subfactor A – Technical Approach Instructions – suggest that these instructions be reviewed for flow and common topics and numbered.  For example, the first paragraph in Subfactor A requires the offeror to demonstrate understanding of the requirements, explain the approach, and identify optimum skill mix.  Suggest that the Contracting Office restructure the topics in the Mission Suitability instructions into logical and related topics with a sequence number associated with the major categories.  This will aid the offerors’ to better understand the submission requirements and to ensure a standard proposal – easier for the Contracting Office to compare responses.
	No change is made to L.21.2 or L.21.3 relative to this comment.

	40) Reference RFP L.22 Cost Volume – page 94 contains the following statement regarding the Basis of Estimates: “BOEs shall be submitted by both the Prime Offeror and all significant subcontractors and shall comply with the BOE page limitations set forth in PROPOSAL PREPARATIONS—GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS provision of this RFP.”  Does the government request Offerors to combine the responses to the Basis of Estimates for the Prime and each significant subcontractor or to separate the responses for each?
	Separate BOEs should be submitted for the Prime and each significant subcontractor.

	41) Reference RFP L.22 – Exhibit 1 – Exhibit 1 is to be completed for each year of the contract.  At the top of Exhibit 1, the Offeror is to insert the WBS #.  Where does the WBS # come from?  Should the Offeror submit a separate Exhibit 1 for each WBS for each year of the contract?
	L.21.2 Mission Suitability Proposal Format has been revised to remove language regarding the Work Breakdown Structure.

	42) Reference RFP L.22 - Specific section.  Many of the exhibits in Excel format are multiple pages and have been reduced in size to fit on a single page.  How does the Government suggest offers include these exhibits so that they fit on a page without violating the font requirements (12 pitch for text and 10 pitch for tables and illustrations?
	Refer to Provision L.13(b)(2) Proposal Content and Page Limitations – foldouts are allowable.

	43) Reference RFP L.23(b) page 99 – This section contains the following statement: “The questionnaire respondent shall be a representative from the technical customer and responsible Contracting Officer with direct knowledge of your firm's performance.”  Is the government requesting that offerors request two questionnaires for each relevant contract: one from a contracting reference and one from a technical reference?
	It is preferable that one questionnaire be filled out by both the technical customer representative and the responsible Contracting Officer.  However, if this is not achievable a questionnaire from each individual with their applicable portions filled out is acceptable.

	44) The FAR states that Disadvantaged Companies are exempt from DCAA audits.  Is L.22 Cost Volume Under 1. Instruction saying that companies must be DCAA compliant?   Please explain this requirement in more detail. 


	In order for a cost reimbursable contract to be awarded, the successful offeror must have an accounting system that has been determined adequate by DCAA for the purposes of accumulating and reporting incurred costs.  The accounting system status as well as direct and indirect rates are verified through the cognizant DCAA office.  


	45) Section L requires 3 contracts with an annual average of over two (2) million. I think that the requirements of Section L are restrictive of competition for 8(a).   We request this to be revised for a total contract value of over two (2) million, not annual average receipts.   
	Provision L.23(a) will remain unchanged.  However, the provision does not require a specific number of contracts, but rather requires any contracts within the last 3 years that meet this requirement.

	46a) If there is a teaming agreement in place will the past performance and experience of the non(8)a be considered to meet and or exceed the past performance requirements.  
	The RFP instructions and evaluation criteria should be clear as they relate to the evaluation of the prime contractor and significant subcontractors.  A “teaming agreement” between a prime offeror and significant subcontractors would not change the evaluation methodology.  However, if a prime offeror is a “Joint Venture”, then the members of the Joint Venture will be considered as the prime offeror and their past contracts will be evaluated as part of the prime offeror evaluation.  



	46b) If there is a Joint Venture in place will the past performance and experience of the non(8)a be considered to meet and or exceed the past performance requirements.  
	

	47) Is there a Union Contract associated?
	Clause J.1, List of Attachments has been revised to incorporate the current Collective Bargaining agreement as Attachment EE.

	48) What is the current contract value?
	Approximately $89M.

	49) What is the current level of staffing?
	Approximately 110 people.

	50) Is there a bond required?
	The core requirement of the contract is for services and therefore does not require bonding.  However, some areas of the IDIQ section are construction and bonds will be required prior to the issuance of task orders.

	51) Reference:  General.  While we are aware this contract has been an 8(a) set aside for at least three prior terms—and presumably performance has met NASA’s requirements—would it not make more sense to reverse the arrangement? That is, to make the contract full & open, and insert strict requirements regarding the use of small and minority businesses as subcontractors?   
	This requirement will remain an 8(a) set-aside.

	52) Reference:  RFP Attachment A, Section 1.10.  The second paragraph in this section states that “[t]he Contractor shall perform all maintenance…necessary for the warranties to remain in effect.”  Also, the first paragraph in Section 1.10 states that “…data regarding the warranty program shall be maintained in the…CMMS.”  Although the RFP goes on to say that the Contractor is responsible for loading and maintaining warranty data—and for updating data regarding new equipment—it might be helpful to insert language as to the process by which the Contractor obtains warranty data previously obtained.
	Existing warranty data is in Maximo.

	53) Reference:  RFP Attachment A, Section 1.11.5.  This section discusses Contractor responsibilities regarding water, energy, and other utilities conservation.  It goes on to say:  “Contractor shall provide input to the Government when conservation of resources can be improved.”  As of now pricing sheets do not cover costs for bringing in outside subcontractors or internal experts to consult and advise the Contractor on these matters.  While the Contractor’s in-house maintenance staff can be expected to identify some of these ideas, more technical or complex conservation strategies—especially those calling for capital inputs—would more likely emerge from professionals in these fields.   Will the government consider including a CLIN or similar provision for costing these services?
	The referenced section will not be revised to include the suggested CLIN.

	54) Reference:  RFP Attachment A, Section 1.12.1.  The section cited states that “[T]he Contractor shall ensure employees are trained in environmental compliance, hazardous materials, hazardous waste management, ozone depleting substances, combustion training, safety, and emergency response…”  We presume the entirety of this training this does not pertain to all Contractor personnel, but rather only to those performing related duties.
	Only those performing related duties should have the referenced training.

	55) Reference:  RFP Attachment A, Section 2.1.2.  States that “[T]he Contractor shall continuously maintain an adequate staff…” [emphasis added].  Suggest final RFP define “adequate” lest offerors submit widely disparate staffing estimates.
	It is at each offeror’s discretion to determine the staffing required to meet the requirements of the SOW.

	56) Reference:  SF 33.  While we understand that proposal dates are not firm at the early juncture, we would suggest NASA grant at least a 45 to 60-day period between release of the final RFP and the date of proposal submission.
	The proposal response time will remain at 30 days.

	57)  Section M Page 103, Subfactor A – Technical Approach and Page 104: The referenced pages state that this subfactor will be used to determine how thoroughly the Offeror understands the needs and objectives of the technical requirements.

As written (that is, if taken literally) RFP, Section L & M, only requires a response to a limited number of technical requirements, i.e. material and parts management, preventive maintenance, central power plant, utility control system and others as noted in section L & M.

The question is what about the Offeror understanding of the need and objectives of the technical requirements not included in section L & M? If they should be addressed the RFP should be revised to reflect the same. Also, the page limitation should be considered for this added response. 
	The proposal should contain only responses to the technical requirements stated in Sections L & M.
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